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Lasley, Timothy G

From: Lasley, Timothy G
Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2019 3:57 PM
To: Collins, Scott
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B
Subject: BAR Action - June 18, 2019 - 605 Preston Place

June 19, 2019 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness Application 
BAR 19-06-05 
605 Preston Place 
Tax Parcel 050111000 
Neighborhood Investment – PC, LP, Owner/Collins Engineering, Applicant 
Parking Lot Expansion 
 
Dear Applicant, 
 
The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of Architectural Review 
(BAR) on June 18, 2019. The following action was taken: 
 

This item was pulled from the consent agenda. 
 
Motion: Mohr moved to accept the applicant’s request for deferral. Balut seconded Approved (9-0). 

 
If you would like to hear the specifics of the discussion, the meeting video is on-line at: 
http://charlottesville.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1370 
 
If you have any questions, please contact either myself, or Jeff Werner at 434-970-3130 or wernerjb@charlottesville.org. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
Tim Lasley 
 
-- 
Tim Lasley 
Acting Assistant Historic Preservation and Design Planner 
City of Charlottesville | Neighborhood Development Services 
University of Virginia | Class of 2020 
School of Architecture 
 
Phone: (434)-970-3398 
Email: lasleyt@charlottesville.org 
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CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE 
BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
STAFF REPORT  
June 18, 2019 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness Application 
BAR 19-06-05 
605 Preston Place 
Tax Parcel 050111000 
Neighborhood Investment – PC, LP, Owner/Collins Engineering, Applicant 
Parking Lot Expansion 
 

  
 
Background 
Built in 1857, 605 Preston Place is an Individually Protected Property located in the Rugby Road-
University Circle-Venable Neighborhood ADC District. Known as Wyndhurst, it was the manor house of 
the 100-acre farm that is now the Preston Heights section of the city. It is a typical two-story, three-bay, 
double–pile white weatherboard house with Greek Revival details. (Historic survey, photos and drawings 
of the original building are attached.) 
 
Prior BAR Actions 
October 17, 2017 – The BAR moved to find that the proposed renovations satisfy the BAR’s criteria and 
guidelines and are compatible with this property and other properties in the Rugby Road-University 
Circle-Venable ADC district, and that the BAR approves the application as submitted. The BAR would 
encourage zoning to look into the 50 foot setback, because the BAR believes it would be a more 
successful design with a back porch. 
 
August 14, 2017 – The BAR approved moving [to 506-512 Preston Place] the house, porch, chimneys, 
and east side additions located at 605 Preston Avenue and demolition of the rear additions.  
 
Application 
Applicant submitted: 
• Collins Engineering submittal dated May 28, 2019: Project narrative, images of existing historic 

house on parcel, images of existing site conditions and context, proposed permeable pavers precedent, 
proposed brick wall with bluestone cap, landscape plan, and paver cut sheet. 

• Collins Engineering Preston Apartments Site Plan amendment submittal dated May 29, 2019: Cover 
(page 1), existing conditions and demolition plan (page 2), layout, grading, and drainage plan (page 
3), drainage map, storm profiles, and calculations (page 4), notes and details (page 5), landscaping 
plan (page 6), erosion and sediment control plan narrative (page 7), erosion and sediment control plan 
(page 8), and stormwater management plan (page 9). 

 
Request to construct a 25-space, permeable paver, parking lot in the rear yard of the historic structure. 
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Permeable pavers will match those used for the parking surface at 608 Preston Place, across the street. 
The color of the proposed ECO paver will be Harvest Blend. The parking lot will have a flush, concrete 
curb that follows the Preston Court Apartment’s property line. Near the entrance to Preston Court will be 
low, brick seating walls capped with bluestone.  
 
New plantings will provide screening, however, six trees will be removed to accommodate the parking 
lot. Proposed landscaping will mitigate the loss of this tree canopy. One 36 inch Oak tree in the northwest 
corner will remain.  
 
Discussion 
Staff finds the request appropriate since the proposed parking area is appropriately screened and is placed 
behind the historic structure. Additionally, staff finds the number of trees proposed in the landscape plan 
appropriate accommodate for the loss of tree canopy in regard to the removal of the six existing trees. 
 
Regarding the 36 inch oak to remain, staff recommends that the BAR consider a condition of approval 
that requires the applicant to consult with a licensed arborist to establish—and implement—stringent 
measures to protect the tree during construction. Such steps might include the installation of rigid fencing 
to limit—if not preclude—traffic within the entirety of the tree’s dripline.   
 
Suggested Motions 
Approval: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design 
Guidelines for Site Design and Elements, I move to find that the parking lot expansion satisfies the 
BAR’s criteria and is compatible with this Individually Protected Property and other properties in the 
Rugby Road-University Circle-Venable Neighborhood ADC District, and that the BAR approves the 
application as submitted.  
 
(or with the following modifications…)  
 
Denial: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design Guidelines 
for Site Design and Elements, I move to find that the parking lot expansion does not satisfy the BAR’s 
criteria and is not compatible with this Individually Protected Property and other properties in the Rugby 
Road-University Circle-Venable Neighborhood ADC District, and that the BAR approves the application 
as submitted. 
 
Criteria, Standards, and Guidelines 
Review Criteria Generally 
Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that, in considering a particular application the BAR shall approve 
the application unless it finds: 

(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or applicable 
provisions of the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to Sec.34-288(6); and 

(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the district in 
which the property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the application. 

 
Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include: 

(1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed addition, 
modification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with the site and the 
applicable design control district; 

(2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and placement of 
entrances, windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs; 

(3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of Federal 
Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant; 

(4) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood;  
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(5) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as gardens, 
landscaping, fences, walls and walks; 

(6) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an adverse 
impact on the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures; 

(7) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines. 
 
Pertinent Guidelines on Site Design and Elements  
B. PLANTINGS 
Plantings are a critical part of the historic appearance of the residential sections of Charlottesville’s 
historic districts. The character of the plantings often changes within each district’s sub-areas as well as 
from district to district. Many properties have extensive plantings in the form of trees, foundation 
plantings, shrub borders, and flowerbeds. Plantings are limited in commercial areas due to minimal 
setbacks. 
 

1) Encourage the maintenance and planting of large trees on private property along the streetfronts, 
which contribute to the “avenue” effect. 

2) Generally, use trees and plants that are compatible with the existing plantings in the 
neighborhood. 

3) Use trees and plants that are indigenous to the area. 
4) Retain existing trees and plants that help define the character of the district, especially street trees 

and hedges. 
5) Replace diseased or dead plants with like or similar species if appropriate. 
6) When constructing new buildings, identify and take care to protect significant existing trees and 

other plantings. 
7) Choose ground cover plantings that are compatible with adjacent sites, existing site conditions, 

and the character of the building. 
8) Select mulching and edging materials carefully and do not use plastic edgings, lava, crushed rock, 

unnaturally colored mulch or other historically unsuitable materials. 
 
E. WALKWAYS & DRIVEWAYS 
Providing circulation and parking for the automobile on private sites can be a challenging task, 
particularly on smaller lots and on streets that do not accommodate parking. The use of appropriate 
paving materials in conjunction with strategically placed plantings can help reinforce the character of 
each district while reducing the visual impact of driveways. 
 

1) Use appropriate traditional paving materials like brick, stone, and scored concrete. 
2) Concrete pavers are appropriate in new construction, and may be appropriate in site renovations, 

depending on the context of adjacent building materials, and continuity with the surrounding site 
and district. 

3) Gravel or stone dust may be appropriate, but must be contained. 
4) Stamped concrete and stamped asphalt are not appropriate paving materials. 
5) Limit asphalt use to driveways and parking areas. 
6) Place driveways through the front yard only when no rear access to parking is available. 
7) Do not demolish historic structures to provide areas for parking. 
8) Add separate pedestrian pathways within larger parking lots, and provide crosswalks at vehicular 

lanes within a site. 
 
F. PARKING AREAS & LOTS 
Most of the parking areas in the downtown consist of public or private surface lots or parking decks. 
Along West Main Street, Wertland Street, and the Corner, some larger lots have parking areas contained 
within the individual site. 
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1) If new parking areas are necessary, construct them so that they reinforce the street wall of 
buildings and the grid system of rectangular blocks in commercial areas. 

2) Locate parking lots behind buildings. 
3) Screen parking lots from streets, sidewalks, and neighboring sites through the use of walls, trees, 

and plantings of a height and type appropriate to reduce the visual impact year-round. 
4) Avoid creating parking areas in the front yards of historic building sites. 
5) Avoid excessive curb cuts to gain entry to parking areas. 
6) Avoid large expanses of asphalt. 
7) On large lots, provide interior plantings and pedestrian walkways. 
8) Provide screening from adjacent land uses as needed. 
9) Install adequate lighting in parking areas to provide security in evening hours. 
10) Select lighting fixtures that are appropriate to a historic setting. 
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Preston Apartments – Parking Lot Expansion (605 Preston Place) 

APPLICANT: COLLINS ENGINEERING 

DATE:  May 28, 2019 

PROJECT NARRATIVE 

605 Preston Place is an existing parcel with a Historic House located on the lot.  The parcel is 
adjacent to the Preston Apartments, which is currently under construction for interior 
renovation and exterior maintenance.  The lot has access to Preston Place along the front of the 
parcel and rear of the parcel.  The existing Historic house fronts on the Preston Place, and is 
consistent to the streetscape along this roadway.   

Currently, this lot is being utilized for construction access for the Preston Apartments 
renovation.  Contractor staging areas are currently located on the property, and the house is 
currently being used as a construction field office.  The owners are proposing to construct a 
permeable paver 25 space parking lot on this parcel in the rear yard, behind the existing historic 
house for the benefit of the Preston Apartment building.  The entrance to the parking lot will be 
a one‐way entrance into the lot from Preston Place along the rear of the property, and the 
parking lot will exist at the front of the parcel onto Preston Place, see the attached application 
plan.  The proposed parking lot will be constructed of permeable pavers, matching the pavers 
that were installed on the Sigma Chi property across the street.  The pictures and specifications 
for these pavers are included in this narrative document.  The color of the proposed ECO paver 
(EP Henry) permeable paver product will be Harvest Blend.  A concrete sidewalk is proposed 
along the Preston Apartments property line (on the Preston Apartments property) tying in the 
parking lot to the apartment building.  Concrete steps and brick retaining walls/seating walls 
will be used to connect the parking lot to the sidewalk and to the access steps to the apartment 
building.  The brick seating walls will match the brick walls on the Preston Apartment building, 
and will have the same bluestone cap, see attached pictures in this document.  The concrete 
sidewalk and steps will match the required color used for Charlottesville concrete sidewalks and 
curbing.  All handrails shall match the Preston Apartment railings. 

Landscaping will be installed for the parking lot expansion to screen the cars from Preston Place 
and the neighborhood.  There is an existing 36” Oak tree in the northwest corner of the parcel 
that is proposed to remain.  Additional trees and shrubs shall be planted along the rear 
property line and North property line to screen the parking lot from the adjacent properties.  
Interior trees and landscaping are also proposed in the parking lot, exceeding the minimum 
interior landscaping requirements of the City of Charlottesville.  A 36‐inch cedar tree, a 30‐inch 
cedar tree, a 10‐inch maple, and (3) other trees will be removed the construction of the parking 
lot on the property.  The proposed landscaping will mitigate the loss of this tree canopy and 
provide additional tree canopy on the existing lot. 

At this time, no review is being requested for the existing historic house.  Any modifications or 
changes to the existing house will be submitted to the BAR as a separate application for review. 
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Existing Historic house on the parcel 
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Preston Apartments – Currently under construction / renovation 

 
Existing 36” Oak Tree to Remain 
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Proposed Permeable Pavers – Eco Paver (EP Henry) – Color: Harvest Blend 
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Proposed brick wall / seating wall with bluestone cap – matching Preston Apartments 
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Landscape Rendering of the Site Plan 
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